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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IKIO Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IKIO Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
loss, total comprehensive Loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
forensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectivés are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are aiso responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.




e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

s  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inciuding the disclosures,
and wiether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in eveluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We alsa provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As re;iuired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 17, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3.-and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.” We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
 ‘belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit: i :

b.. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Eqjuity, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

L)

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the

Act;




. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report in “Annexure 2".

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(1) ~ The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(i) ~ The Cempany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(ii1) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv} (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person orentity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. ' : '

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(¢) contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and until the date of this
repoit. .




(vi) Based on our examination which included tesi checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, which does not have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility as required by proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranay Jﬂi;l
Partner ,
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BKCQBG3543

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Noida



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of IKIO Solutions Private Limited on the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2024]

To the best of our information and according to the information, explanations, and written representations provided
to us by the Company and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit we
report that:

(i) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and intangible
assets:
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant
details of right of use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(1)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets which were due for physical verification during the year were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of following immovable properties which have been pledged as security for
loans taken by the Company, have been verified from the pledge documents.

Description of property Gross Carrying Value
(Amount in Rs. Million)
Industrial Property, Plot No- 10, Sector 156, 294.72
Bandoli Village, Noida - 201301.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets
during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. )

(i1) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification have been
properly dealt with in the books of account. '




(1)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the
vear. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not provided any guarantee, security, loans or granted any advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership
or any other parties during the year. The Company has made investments in a Company
during the year.

The Company has provided guarantees and security to 3 companies. The details of the same
are given below:

Particulars Guarantees (in | Security (in Rs.
Rs. Million) Million)

Aggregate amount during the year

- Others 2 -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Others 185.58 185.58

In our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company. The Company has not provided loans and advances in the nature of loans during
the year. The terms and conditions of the guarantees given in the earlier years are not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(ii1)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and security, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered
under section 185.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and there are no amounts which have been considered
as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited

%P%OC"&{% with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a

jew cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at
he year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.



(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received
from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the management of
the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not
been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. There are no joint ventures or
associale companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.



(xii)

(x111)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(b)

(€)

(a)

(b)

(c)

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal andit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal
audit system. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial years
amounting to Rs. 30.71 and 8.82 million respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

A On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that



Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
15 not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not fulfill the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Further, the reporting
under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of the
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For BGJU & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Voo™

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BKCQBG3543

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Noida



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of IKIO Solutions Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IKIO Solutions Private Limited Company
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internai control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repomng issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controis that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such contiols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systerm over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,




Meanring of Interna! Financiai Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) pravide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Emitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opiniuﬁ

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For BGJC & Associates LLP
.Chartered: Accountants FE §

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

‘;’ranav Jain
Partner e i
Membership No. 198508

UDIN: 24098305BK.CQBG3543

Date: May 24. 2024
Place: Noida



IKIO Solutions Private Limited
(CIN:U36995UP2018PTC108238)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(AN ameunts are in Rupees million, unless ctherwise stated)

As at As at

Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assets
MNon-current assets
Praperty, plant and equipment 3 134.15 -
Capital work-in-progress 4 746,05 269.01
Right of use assets -] 356.62 284.91
Financial assets

(i) Investments 6 75.85

(i} Other financial assets T 228 -
Daferred lax assels (net) 8 263 1.66
Non current tax asset (net) 9 0.20 0.13
Other non current assets 10 103.14 299
Total non-current assets 1,420.90 558.70
Current assets
Inventories 11 963 -
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 12 1.69 -

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 13 §.84 474

(i} Bank balances other than (i) above 14 11.36 347

(iv) Other financial assets 15 393 0.68
Other current assels 16 1.13 -
Total current assets 37.58 8.89
Total assets 1,458.48 567.59
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 17 290,60 0.50
Other equity 18 554.27 (14.29)
Total Equity B844.87 (13.79)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings. 19 322.00 -

(il} Lease liabilities 20 130.51 69.20
Provisions 21 0.62 -
Total non-current liabilities 453.13 69.20
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 88.95 499,58

(i} Lease liabilities 23 15.85 -

(ii Trade payables 24

- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and 2.05 -
- lotal outsianding dues of creditors other than micro and 254
small enlerprises '

{iv) Other financial liabilities 25 4671 9.71
Other current labilities 26 4.35 289
Provisions 27 0.03 -
Total current liabilities 160.48 512.18
Total liabilities 613.61 581.38
Total equity and liabilities 1,458.48 567.59
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ) IKIO Sqlutioms Private Limited
Firm's Registration Number: 003304N/N500056 'l

“wﬁg I \\\\waﬁug\
Pranav Jain Hardeep Singh Ishwesenm Raar
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 098308 DIN: {!UE@ DIN: 06818223

N ? %V/—'j

Place: Noida h 'A-l-i"" Gupta deep A-g: al
Date: May 24, 2024 agf Hhancial Officer Company Secretary

AGS: 066255



IKIO Solutions Private Limited

{CIN:U36995UP2018PTC108238)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations 28
Other income 29
Total Income

Expenses

Cost of malerials consumed 30
Change in inventories 31
Employee benefits expense 3z
Finance costs 33
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34
Other expenses 35
Total expenses

Loss before tax

Tax expenses 46
Current tax

Deferred tax {credif) / charge

Loss after tax

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

- Income tax reiating to these items

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per equity share: 36
Nominal value of Rs. 10 each (previous year Rs. 10 each)

-Basic (In Rs))

-Diluied (In Rs.)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountanis
Firmn's Registration Number; 003304NMN500058

Rromerge™

Pranav Jain " Hardeep
Pariner Director
Membership Number: 098308

Place: Noida

Date; May 24, 2024

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
261 -
0.43 0.21
3.04 0.21
1.88
(0.87)
1.60 >
12,71 8.80
18.71 3.27
5.74 0.22
40.77 12.30
(37.73) (12.09)
(0.97) 471
(0.97) 4.71
{36.76) (16.81)
(36.76) {16.81)
(3.23) (336.15)
(3.23) (336.15)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IKIO Solutions Private Limited

\ s

Ishween Kaur
Director

DIN: 06818222 /7
Ay =

Samteep ﬁgan\ral
Company Secretary
ACS: 066255



IKIO Solutions Private Limited

(CIN:U36995UP2018PTC108238)

Statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupee million, uniess otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital*

Balance as at April 1, 2022 0.50
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.50
Change in equity share capital during the year 260.10
Balance as at March 31, 2024 290.60
B. Other Equity*
Equity Reserves and Surpius
Tt Component Securities premium | Retained Earnings ke

Balance as at April 01, 2022 15.44 - (12.92) 252
Profit for the year = - (16.81) (16.81)
Total Comprehensive Income 15.44 - (29.73) (14.29)
Transfer from retained earnings . - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 15.44 - (29.73) (14.29)
Profit for the year - - (36.78) (36.76)
Other Comprehensive Income = - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 15.44 - (66.49) (51.05)
Securilies premium on issue of equity shares = 605.32 - 605.32
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.44 605.32 (66.49) 554.27

* The accompanying Note no. 17 & 18 are an integral part of these financial statements.

For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accounlanis IKIO Solutions Private Limited
Firm's Registration Number: 003304N/N500056

o

Partner
Membership Number: 098308

Nnsesn

Hardeep Singh Ishween Kaur
Director Director
DIN: 06818223

Z e

Company Secretary
ACS: 086255

Place: Noida
Date: May 24, 2024




IKIO Solutions Private Limited
(CIN:U36995UP2018PTC108238)

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupee miflion, unless ofherwise sfated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (37.73) {12.09)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 18.71 .27
Finance costs 12.69 6.80
Interest income on bank deposils (0.33) (0,21}
Operating loss before working capital changes {5.66) (2.23)
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (9.63} -
Trade receivables (1.69) -
Other financial assels (5.48) (0.54)
Oiher current assets (64.74) 7.64
Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables 4,59 .
Ciher current liabilities 1.46 2.50
Other financial liabilities 0.09 1.87
Praovisions 0.65 -
Cash (used in)/ genrated from operations (80.41) 9.14
Taxes and interest thereon paid (0.07) (0.08)
Net cash (used in)/ genrated from operating activities (B0.48) 9.06
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Payments for property, plant and equipments (135.59) -
Purchase of Right of use assets/Capital work-in-progress (Including capital advance) (476.86) [177.18)
Purchase of Investment (75.85) .
Movement in bank deposit (7.B9) (0.15)
Interest received 0.29 0.17
Net cash used in investing activities (695.80) [177.16)
C. Cash flow from financing activities*:
Proceads from issue of shares B95.42 -
Net (decrease)fincrease in borrowings from banks [144.85) 14,53
Net increase in borrowings from related parfies / Inter Corporate Loans 56.22 168277
Payment of lease obligations (25.31) (8.58)
Interest paid - (0,22}
Net cash generated from financing activities 781.48 170.50
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 511 239
Cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 13)
-at beginning of the year 4.74 238
-at end of the year 5.84 4.74
MNotes to cash flow statement
{i) Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks:
— On current accounts 9.68 463
Cash on hand 0.18 011
9.84 4.74
{ii) *Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:
MNon Current
ﬂnj:;:;"'afum Current Borrowings  Interest Accrued  Lease Liabilities
_Maturities)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Balance as at April 1, 2023 144,85 35473 215 60820
Loan drawls (in cash)linterest accrued during the year 322,00 - 2515 102.48
Loan repaymentsinterast payment during tha year (144.85) (285.78) (0.75) {25.31)
Current maturities of non-current borrowings - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 322.00 B88.95 26.55 146.37
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Balance as at April 1, 2022 207.09 115.19 0.00 59.20
Loan drawls {in cash)/interest acerued during the year 192,04 430.21 28,54 6.58
Loan repaymentsiinterest payment during tha year (177.51) (267.44) (26.79) (6.58)
Currert maturities of nan-current berrowings (78.77) 76.77 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 144,85 354.73 215 §08.20

{iii}. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indireci method as sel out in Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Slatements,

(iv}. Notes 1o the Financials Statements are integral pan of the Gash Flow Statement.
As per our report of even date,

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants.
Firm's Registration Number. 0033040500056

MW

Partner
Membership No. 088308

Place; Noida
Date: May 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
jons Private Limited

>

Ishween Kaur
Director

DIN: 06818223

eR\

Sa np‘ialnn'll
Company Secretary
ACS: 066255



(if)

(iii)

(iv)

IKIOSolutions Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearMarch 31, 2024

Background

IKIO Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company') is a company domiciled in India, with its registered
office situated at Noida (UP). The Company was incorporated in India on September20, 2018.The
Company has presently acquired land in Noida and construction is in progress. The company
plans to setup a manufacturing unit for production of lights and related products aligned with group
companies.

The company has started its commercial production from March 20, 2024.
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act) - read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA")).as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorized and approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on May 24, 2024. The revisions to the financial statements are
permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of
regulatory authorities as per provisionsof the Act.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule |1l to the Act.

Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR/Rs.), which is also the
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless
otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

Thefinancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the \ftﬁg\wing

items: \
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IKIOSolutions Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearMarch 31, 2024

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability Present value of defined benefit obligations.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

» Note no38: leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease.

* Note no 43: classification of financial assets: assessment of business mode! within which the
assels are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2024 is included in the following notes:

» Note no 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

* Note no 37:recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources.

* Note no 46: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
tax losses carried forward can be used.

» Note no 42: measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

» Note no 43: Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of financial
assets.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
ordinary ftransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value




IKIOSolutions Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearMarch 31, 2024

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in thefinancial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(vii)  Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For
the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards applicable to the Company.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(i) Revenue
In recognising revenue, the Company applies Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The
Standard require apportioning revenue earmed from contracts to individual promises, or
performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, using a five-step model.
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an
amount that reflect the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for those
product or services at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally
the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts.

The company earns revenue from sales of LED lighting.

Revenue from sale of LED lighting

Revenue from Sale of LED lighting is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of
promised goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company
pects fo receive in exchange for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive U
&:8vonomic benefits associated with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliablyn \

BN

2d. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,




(ii)

IKIOSolutions Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearMarch 31, 2024

which is generally the contracted price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts considering the
impact of variable consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition; -

» The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods.

* At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the
contract are identified. The Company delivers goods as per terms & condition of the contract.
Contracts are of differing natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation, and
on other occasions have multiple performance obligations. Contract liability has been created
towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligation.

» Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter-corporate loans is recognised using the effective
interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Other income
In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising income on
accrual basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes(wherever
applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates,
any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.




IKIOSolutions Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearMarch 31, 2024

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
assel, as appropriate, only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the
reporting year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value over their useful life using written down value method and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule |l of

the Act.
Particulars Useful lives (inyears)
Tangible assets:
Furniture and fixtures 8-10
Plant & Machinery 15
Office equipment 5
Computer 3
Leasehold improvement S

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its
estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided
on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on
sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or
discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end,
and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

(iii)  Other intangible assets HLIJ

: "g ible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable
agset will flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured.
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IKIOSolutions Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearMarch 31, 2024

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working
condition for its intended use.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives
using the written down value method and is included in depreciation and amortisationexpense

inthe statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives (in years)
Software 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end,
and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible
asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of
the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the

I
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the

cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value
through profit and loss. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and
loss is expensed in the statement of profit and loss.
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

« amortised cost;
* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or
» Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period theCompany changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as FVTPL:

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assefs to collect
contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

il
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* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solelypayments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated
as FVTOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis,

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition,
the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that

otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCIor at EVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

» the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

» how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

= the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed:;

» how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

» the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition

are notconsidered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition

of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest

'
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for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment,
the Company considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:

* terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features:
prepayment and extension features; and

* terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or
premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is
insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any.
Interest income and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or
loss onderecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On
Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

i
Finami

\ | liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
NdL.DBlEI’S pd as at FVTPL if it is classified as held fortrading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss
hsﬁﬂcja!
)
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such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

iii. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.

iv. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with miodified terms is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost: and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI- debt investments

each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost Hw
-
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asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following
observable data:

» significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:

* a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

» the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would
not consider otherwise;

* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or another financial reorganisation; or

» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking
information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than agreed credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

» the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

* the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
ue to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company

SKRects to receive).
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(vii) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted average.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to
their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of
cost and net realisable value is made on anitem-by-item basis.

(viiij Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expenses off as the related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus
etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders
the related service. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligation in
thebalance sheet.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is
a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to
the plan at a predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and
managed by the Government of India. The Company has no further obligations under the plan
beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined contribution plan are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the period during
which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity MM ’
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The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum
payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of
employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of
the company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at
the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and
adjusted for past service cost as at the balance sheet date. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on
change in present value of the defined benefit obligation is recognised as an income or expense in
the other comprehensive income. The Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The Company's determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee
benefits. The liability in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.done by an independent actuary as at the
balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses arerecognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

l\the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
5iS or simultaneously.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent
losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to
the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assels, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be real.

(x) Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. u
Contingent assets
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Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the Company.

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for events such as bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted into equity shares as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present
segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's
Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is

Il
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The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services.
Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to
the segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and
not allocable to segments are included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is
included in unallowable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective
segments. Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate
to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or
"‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 40for segment information.

Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

. the contract involves the use of an identified asset

. the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low-value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
iability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease
@ashany initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost

res‘{%cumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU
asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to
the ROU asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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(CIN:U36935UP2018PTC108238)

Naotes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts ara in Rupee million, unless ofherise slaled)

4  Capital work-in-progress As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance 269.01 93.69
Addition during the year (net):(refer below footnotes)
Building under construction 274.39 175.32
Plant and machinery* 181.23 -
Furniture® 20.07 -
Office equipment” 1.35 =
Balance at the end the year 746.05 269.01
* Assets that are not ready to use as at March 31, 2024,
Ageing schedule for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 477.04 175.32 52.90 40.79 746.05
Projects temporanily suspended - = - - -
Total 477.04 175.32 52.90 40.79 T46.05
Ageing schedule for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 175.32 £2.90 39.23 1.58 269.01
Projects temporarily suspended - = = = -
Total 175.32 52.90 39.23 1.56 268.01

There is no Capital work in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan. However, money outflow
towards project was slower than anticipated in the prospectus. Accordingly no disclosures are required.

Note:-
{i) Including pre-oprative expenduture during construction pericd pending allocation / capitalisation
Year ended Year ended

Particulars March, 31, 2024 March, 31, 2023
Opening Balance 81.50 4B.12
Interest cost 31.75 23.96
Cost of materials consumed 14.62 -
Salaries and wages 7.99 227
Rent 7.50 2.59
Electricity and water charges 3.68 1.43
Manpower cost 282 0.80
Job Werk Charges 2,62 =
Transport expenses 1,48 -
Legal & professional charges 0,47 2.27
Contribution to provident and other funds 0,44 -
Director's remuneraticn 0.36 -
Adrin Expenses 0.24 -
Rates & taxes 0.18 -
Printing and stationary 0.16 -
travel & conveyance expenses 0.14 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.92 0.07
Less: Income during trial run period
Revenue from Sale of product {32.88) -

123.99 81.50
Less:- Capitalised during the period =
Capitafised in Plant and machinery (11.79) 1
Total 112.20 81.50
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§ Right of use assets

Reconciliation of carrying value Amount
Gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2022

Opening balance 204,72
Addition during the year -
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 294.72
Addition during the year 80.08
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 384.70
Accumulated amortization and impairment amount as at April 01, 2022

Opening balance 5.54
Amaortisation for the year 3.27
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year ended March 31, 2023 9.81
Amortisation for the year 18.27
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year ended March 31, 2024 28.08
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 284.91
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 356.62
Note

1. During the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023, the company recognised right of use assets as per Ind AS 116
'Leases" (Refer note no 38). u
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fAll amounts are in Rupee million, unless atherwise slafed)

As at As at
] Investment {non-current) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Investments in Equity Instruments
Royalus LLC TE RS .
75.85 .
* Invasimant at subsidiary are staled at cost as per Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statement’,
Baook value of agoregate amount of unquoted investmeant
Book Value {in millian) 75.85 -
Notes;
Information of subsidiari ipany
Proportion of ownership interest
Principal Place of ! vating rights heid by the group
Name of entity activity incorporation As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Subsidiary company
Royahe: LLC Trading Unéled Statas 100% 0%
¥ 00w flanpin) anaie fuidraiiciing Mavch 34,2834 warch 34, 3028
—— e
Unsecured - Considered Good
Gecurily deposit 2128 -
2.26 -
As at
8 Defared tixasaetx ins) March 39,2004 _Masch 31,2033
Deferred tax assets (rafer note no 48) 263 1.66
2.63 1.66
As al As at
¥ Noncurent taxasset (nef) March 31,2024 March 34, 2023
Incoma tax (Tex deducted at sourca) 020 013
0.20 0.13
As al As at
10 Other non current assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured - Considered Good
Balance with government autharitias 6418 I
Capital advarices (refer note no 37) 3885 234
10314 2,99
As at As at
11 Inventories March 31, 2024 _March 31, 2023
Valued af lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw matenals 558 -
Work-in-prograss 039 =
Finistad produce 3.00 A
Cihar
(1) Stock in Transi 0.68 s
89,63 -

(This space has been infeniionally laft blank) \)\Jﬂ
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13

14

15

As at As at
__March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables
Unsecured
Caonsidered good 1,89 -
Having significant increase in eredit risk - =
L.ess: provision for expected credit loss X _
1.69 -
Footnote:
Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- March 31, 2024
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Total
05 Months | 612months | 1.2 Years 23Years | Morethand
Unsecured:
(1} Undisputed Trade receivables — considersd pood 1.68 = = - - = 1,69
(i} Undisputed Trade recewvables — Having signaficant
increase in crodil nsk N - o s o - =
() Undisputed Trade recenvables — credil Impared = = 7 - s = =
(v} Dizputed Trade receivables — considered good = - - 3 E =+ -
(v) Disputed Trade recaivables — Having significant
merease in credit risk = - = = - = =
(v} Disputed Trade recsivables — credit Impairad - - = = = i =
Lass: provision for the expected credi loss - - = - = = =
Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- March 31, 2023
Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 from due date of payment
Particulars 5
i UG Wonths | B-12months | 1-2 Yaars 2.3 Years >3 Your .
Unsecured:
{1} Undispued Trade receivablas — considered good - - > 4 e r x
(i} Undispuled Trade recaivables — Having signéficant
MCreass in credif risk - & o 5 & ~ o
iit] Undisputed Trade receivables — credit Impaired - 3 = - ¥ 7 =
{iv] Dsputed Trade recaivables — considered good 5 - = = : = =
{v) Disputed Trade receivables — Having significant
increase in credit risk 3 = = - " 3
vi) Disputed Trade recaivables — cradil Impaired ¥ - = % . = =
Less: pravisiorn for the expected credi joss - . = - * = =
The Company has measured expectad credil loss of trade receivable basad on simplified approach as per Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial Instnaments'
1, For explanation an the Company credit sk managament process. rafier note 43.
2, Trade receivables ara non intetest bearing,
As at As at

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banka
~On current accounts
Cash on hand

Fer explanation on the Company cradd risk management process, refer nata 43,

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank daposits maturity pariad moes than 3 menths bt less than 12 months

For axplanation on the Company cradit risk managemant process, refar nols 43

DOther financial assats (current)

Unsecured - Considered Good
Seaurily deposit

Interast accruad

Qihars recoverable

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, refer nols 43,

Other current assets
Unsecured - Considered Good
Prepaid [ease rent

Prepaid expense

(This space has been infentionally teft blank)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

9.68 4,63
016 011
9.84 474
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11,36 347
11.36 347
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
347 0.64
a.os 0.04
0.3g £
3.83 0.68
As al As at
March 31, 2024 h 31
0.57 -
0.56 -
1.13 =

N
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(AN amounts are in Rupee millian, unless otfmrwise siatnd)

L

Equity share capital
The Company has anly one class of share capital having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, referred to herein as equity shares,

a)

b}

<)

d}

9)

f

al

Authorised Shares.
Equity shares of Rs. 10 2ach

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

Equity shares of Rs, 10 sach

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year,

Equity Shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the vear

Add * lssue of shares

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Terms/rights attached to equity share

Voting

Erch holder of equity shares is entified to one vota per share hald,

Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividerds in Indian rupees. The dividend
mesting excapt in the cass where interim dividend is distribuied, The Com,

Liguidation

In the evant of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entilled to recsive all of the ramal

As at Az at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Amount MNumber Amount
50000000 500,00 100000 1.00
50000000 500,00 100000 1.00
29055611 250, B0 50000 0.50
28059611 2840.60 50000 0.50
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
S0000 0,50 50000 0.50
20008611 250,10 - -
28058611 290,60 50000 0.50

amounts, If any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company's Helding Cempany is "IKID Lighting Limited" (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited).

Detail of shareholders holding mare than 5% of equity share of the Company

proposed by (he Beard of Directors s subjact to approval of the shareholdars in ensuing Annual genaral
pany has not distributed ary dividend in the current year and provious year,

ning agsels of the Company after distribution of all prefersntial

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Heldingin % of total equity  Change during

Holding in % of total equity

numbers shares the year numbers shares
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by :-
IO Lighting Lim lled 290596811 100% 0.00% 50.000.00 100%
Details of shares held by pramoters
Particulars Name Mo, of shares at  Change during MNo. of shares at % of Total % change
tha baginning of this year the end of the Shares during the year
the year year
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Equity shares ol Rs, 10 sach fully paid IKIO Lighting Limitad 50000 29008611 29055611 100% 0.00%
Total 50000 29009611 28059611 100%
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Hardaep Singh 40000 {40,000) - ] {BO%)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 esch fully paid Ishwean Kaur 10000 (10,000) = % {208
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fulty paid IKIO Lighting Linitad - 50000 50000 100% 100%
Total 50000 - E0000 100%

Na class of shares have been aliotied as fully paid up pursuant fo eontracts) without paymernt being racsived in cash,
during tha period of 5 years immediately proceeding the balance shaet date,

(This space has been infentianally left blank)

allotted as fully paid up by way of borus shares o bought back
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19

i

e at s al
squiey March 31, 2024 _March 34, 2023
Equity Component

Opening ' 1544 15,44
Adddion for the year 5 :
Closing balance [A) 15.44 15.44
Securities premium

Opening balance > =
Addition for the year B05.32 -
Closing balanca (B) 605,32 -
Retained Eamings

Opening batance {29.73) (12.92)
{#) Net loss for the year {36.78) [16.81)
Closing balance (C) {66.49) {29.73)
Total other equity (A+B+C) 554.27 (14.28)
Notes to reserves

Equity Componant

Tha equity componen is measured as the difference batwaen tha far valus of the compound instrument and the fair value of the Kabiity companent,
Securities premium

The amount received in excess of face value of Ihe equiy shares is recognised in Securities Premium, The reserve can be Utiksad anly for imited purposes in accardance with Saction 52 of
Companiss Act, 2013,

Retained Eamings

Relained sarnings are the profits/{loss) that the Company has eamad fill date, add/{less) any transfers from/(to) ganeral reserve, securities premium and drvidends ar other distributions paid o
shareholders. Refained eamings includes re-measuremant gaini{loss) on defined besefit cbligations, it of taxes that will nel be reclassified 1o Prafil and Loss.

As at As at
OIS (as-oueme) March 31, 2024 _March 31, 2023
Secured
Term loan from barksMNBFC's - 144 85
Total non current borrowings = 144,85
Unsecured
Inter corporate loans {refar nate 41) 322.00 =
322.00 -
Less: Current maturitiss of non-current barrowings - 144,85
322.00 -
Footnotes:-

The Company's exposure to currency fisks, liguidity risks and inferest rate risks are disclased in Note 43

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Secured loan

i. Term loan

The leng term loans from HOFC bank (Sanctioned Limd Ris 250,00 millions) which is secursd against personal guarantee of directors, Corporats guaranias of IKIO Lighting Limited (a refated
party) and Royalux Lighting Private Limited (a related party). The said (5an has bean prepaid duning fhe yaar,

Unsecured loan

Intercempany deposits carrying Intarest Rate @ 8.50% shall be repaid at tha expiry of 3 years from the daie of disbursement {IKID Lighting Limited 322.00 million),

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Secured loan

i. Term loan

Tha Company has availed long term koans from HOFE bank {Sanctioned Limit Rs 250.00 millions) which is secured against personal guaraniea of directors, Corporate guarantes of IKID
Lighting Limited (a related party) and Royalus Lighting Private Limited (a relaled parly). Furthar, there is a collateral cha g on tha equitable morigage on industrial property of the Group.

Rate of intarest on the boan is 8.05% per annum, The loan is repayahilas within 7 years including maratarium pened of ane year.

s it

Lease liabilities (non-current) March 31 Bt a M;&
Leasa bty (refer note 38) 130.51 69,20
130.51 69.20

. As at As at

T fron-da ) March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for employees benefits
Gratuty (refer note 42) 0,44 0.00
Compensated Absences 018 0.00
0.62 0.




IKIO Solutions Private Limited
{CIN:U36985UP2018PTC108238)

Motes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
[AN amounts ara in Rupee million, unless otherwise staled)

2 Borrowings {current)
Unsecured
Intar corporale lan
Loan from directors (refes note 41)
Loan from oéhers

Current maturities of non-eurrent bomowings

Faotnotes:-
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Unsecured

As at

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

2 185,93
BE.SS 147.85
2 6.85
B8.85 354.73
- 144,85

499.58

e —

1. Interest fréa loan repayabls an demand from Dirsctors (Mr. Hardeep Singh Rs.76.25 million, Mr. Sanjest Singh Rs. 3,00 million and Mrs, lshween Kaur Rs.9.70 milion )

For the year ended March 31, 2023
Unsecured

1. Intwrest fres |oan repayable on demand from Direciors (M. Hardeep Singh Rs.132.25 millian, Mr. Sanjeet Singh Re.5.00 million and Mrs. Ishiween Kaur R3.10.60 millon |

2. Intarcompany deposits carrying Interest Rate @ 9.50% repayabls on demand,
3. The Company has taken loan from others are carries fixed rale of intarast 8% PEF annum.

23 Lease liability (current)

As at

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Lease lability (rafer note no 38) 1585 =
15.85 0.00
As at As at
Tyt March 31,2024 _March 31, 2023
total outstanding duss of micro and small enterprises 205 -
total outstanding duss of creditors olber than micro and small anferprizes 254 -
4,59 -
Footnotes:-
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 from due date of payment
P
sl ek Fe upto 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years More m;:; T
Micra arterprises and small snrerprises 2.05 - - = 205
Other than micro enterprises and small enferprises 232 0.22 - - - 2.54
[Micro enterprises and small enterprises -Disputed Dues - = = = = =
| Other than micre enterprises and small eHieiises-Disputed Duss = S = . - =
| Total 437 0.22 - - = 4.59
|Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 from due date of paymant
Farticllsrs Rettus upto 1 year 1-2 Year 23 Years More “',:;: Teaal
Micro enterprises and small enlorprises - = = ot F _
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises. - F - - . =
Micro enterprises nd small enterprises -Disputed Duas = = = = P =
Other than micre enterprises and small enterprises-Dispuied Duas - E = = g =
Total - - - . P =
I For trade payables to relsted partas please rafer note 41
Ii. Trade payables are non Interest baanng,
i The Company's expasige to currency and liquidity risks relatad lo rade payables are disclosed in Note 43,
. Suppiisrs registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Acl, 2006 are disclosad in Note 39,
As at As at
25  Other financial liabilities (current) — T, 223
Imerest sccreed Dut not due 26,55 2156
Expenses payable 075 e 1]
Capital credilors 16.67 416
Other payables 2.74 3.30
46,71 5.71
The Company's expasurs 1o curmency nsks, liquidity risks and inferest rate risks are disclosed in Note 43
m— As at As at
26 Other current liabilities March 91,20 March 1. 2023
Statutory dues payable 214 .88
Advarce from customers 22 =
436 285
o As at As at
2 Provisions (currant) March 31, 2024 _March 31, 2023
Provision for employees benefits
Gratuily (refer nole no 42) oM -
Compensated Absences 0.02 -
0,03 -

W



IKIO Solutions Private Limited
(CIN:U3IG995UPZ01BPTC108238)

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
(AN amounis are in Rupee mithon, unless otherwise stated)

IRIQ Solutions Private Limited

{CIN:U36985UP2018PTC108228)

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts sre in Rupes millan, unless ofherwise stated)

i

H

32

34

Revenue from operations
Sale of product

Other income

Intarest income on bank deposits
Finance income

Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock

Add: Purchass

Less: Closing stock

Change in inventories
Inventaries (at closing)
= Work-in-prograse

- Finkshed praduct

Inventories (transfer from trial production run)
= Work-n-progress
= Finished produd

Net decreass in inventories
"balances showing the balance exst in business when trial run ends and commertial production starired by company.

Employee benefits expense

Salariss, wages, bonus and ofher allswances

Drector's remunarstion

Contribution to provident and ather funds

Expenses related to post-employment difined benafit plans (rafer nole 42)
Expanses ralaled o compensated absences

Finance costs

Interest on lease labiifies
Interest on bormowing
Interest on delayed paymant

Depraciation and amortisation expense

Depreciabon (refer note 3)
Amartisation of right of use assets (refer note 5)

(Tiws space has bean infentonally left bank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.61 -
FI :
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
033 a1
.10 -
043 021
Year ended Year ended
_March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Bl -
0Es -
5.58 -
1.88 -
Year andad Year anded

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

D38 &
3.00 -
339 -
0.0 .
243
252 =
10.87) .
Year ended Year ended
__March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
087 -
003 -
0.08 -
0.35 -
0,13 -
1.60 0,00
Year ended Yaar ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12.62 558
0.07 022
ooz 2.00
1271 B.BO
Year ended Yaar andad
— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.44 -
1827 azr
18.71 .7

\J



IKIO Solutions Private Limited

(CIN:U3e885UPZOTEP TC10B238)

Notes to the Finaneial Statements as at March 34, 2024
(AN amounts are in Rupee millon, uniess athenwise stated)

1KIO Solutions Private Limited

(CIN:U36S95UP2018P TC108238)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Rupes million, unless otherwse shated)

6

Other Expenses

Rate and taxes

Subsciplion and fes

Auditer's remuneration (refer below notz)
Insurance charges

Printing and staticrery

Paching and lorwanting expanse
Exchange fluctuation

Leoading and unloading charges

Job work expense

Repalr and mamtanance
Generator fusl and running expanses
Electricity and waler expenses
Business promaotion

Bark charges
Legal and professicnal charges

Miscallaneous expenses

Footnotes;

i) Details of auditor's remuneration (excluding goods & service tax)
Statutory audi
Out of pocket expenses

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on ‘Earnings Per Share (EPS]
Basic and diluted earnings per share

-Basic (Rs.}

~Diluted (Rs,)

Nominal value par share

{a) Profit attributable to equity shareholders
Loss for the year
Loss atiributable lo equity shareholders

{b) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Waighted average number of equily shares for basic and diluted EPS

At present, the company dogs nol have any dilutive polential equity shars.
{This space has been infeniforally leff blank)

Year ended

Year endad

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

054 -
ooz 0.08
018 010
013 =
ooy =
012 -
0.32 =
0.05 =
0.30 a
028 &
01
054 =
071 =
D79 &
ol -
0,83 0.04
574 0.22
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.8 010
0.00 o.on
0.18 0.10
As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
{323 {336.15)
{3.23) (336.15)
10.00 10,00
{36.76) (16.81)
{36.76) (16.81)
11376764 §0000
11376764 50000




IKIO Solutions Private Limited

{CIN:U3B995UP2018PTC108228)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AN amaunis are in Rupse milion, unless otherwise sfated)

37 Contingant Liabilities and Other Commitments

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contingent Liabilities.
Corporate guarantes given 137,71 450,64
Capital Commitments

Capital commiment{net of capital advances) 558.68

Leases

Tha Company is 8 lessee urider operating loase of two premises, The Company has axacuted non-cancelable opsrating leases for a year of 5 and 50 years

respectively.

Disclosure in respect of such operating leases is as given below:
Tha movement in lease liabilities during the year ended is as follows;

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cpening Balance 69,20 83,19
Addition - during tha year 85.94 =
Fimance cost accrued during the year 12,49 658
Payment of lease liabdities {25.31) (6.57)
Closing Balance 146,36 69.20
Non-cusrant 13051 85,20
Currenl 1585 -
The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities al year ended on undiscourted basis are as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mot later than ane year 15.85 0.00
Later than one year but not later than five years 61,34 0.01
Later than five years £9.17 88,19
14636 ES.%II-
Right of use asseis
Tha changes in the earrying valus of Right of use assets for the yoar ended are as foflows ;
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opering Balance Z64.91 288.18
Addition - during the year B9.88 -
Depreciation of Right of use sssets 18,27 a27
Clesing Balance ﬁ_w 2B4.91

The lease agreemants do not have any restricive onarous clauses, othar than that those narmally prevalent i similar agraements for use of assets rent

asealation, and lease renowal,

Disclosure of low value and short term lease

The Company is 8 lessee under operating leass of one premisas. The Company has execuled short term operaling leases for a pariod of 11 Manths

renewable as pe mutusl agreement.

Thé aggregate lesse rental of Rs. 0.22 milfion {March 2023: Rs 0.20 million) on such |zases has been chargad to cost of project (capitalised),
The lzase agreement doas not havs any restrictive onsrous diauses, other than that thass normally prevelent in similar agreemants for use of assets. rent

escalation, and leasa ranswal,

(This space has been intontionally leff blank)




IKIO Solutions Private Limited

(CIN:U36995UP2018PTC108238)

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounis are in Rupee million, uniess otherwise stated)

39 Disclosura relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006:

Particulars As at As at
March 34, 2024 March 31, 2023

The prmncipal amount and the interest due herean remaining unpaid fo any MSME supplier as al the end of 2ach accounting

veatvey included in:

Princigial amount due to micm and small antarprises 205

Intérest due on above .

The ameunt of intarest paed by the buyar in terms of section 16 of tha MSMED ACT 2006 aleng with tha amaunts of the peyment o -
mad fo the supplier beyond fhe appointed day during each sccounting yeanyear

The amounts of the payments made to mao and small suppliars bayand the appoiniad day during 2ach acoounting yearlyear. -

The amgunt of interest dua and payable far the year of delay n making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - =
appointment ey during the yeariyear) but without adding he Interest specilied under the MSMED Act, 2006

Thamnmfhﬂmmmmmmm Wwfﬁmnmmumdlmnm mﬂmwwhmmemﬂdmu
above are actually paid fo the small eromeisa for the purpose of dsaliowange as a deductble under section 24 of the MSMED
Lot HOR

40 Segment reporiing
A, Basis for Segmentation
An aperaling segment & a component that engapes in business actiities from which it may earn ravanues and incur axpenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
Wansackons with any of B other components, and fos which discrete financial information is availsbls.

Tha board of deectors have been idenfified 25 the Chist Operating Decision Maker [CODMY, since they are respansible for all major decision w.rt the preparation and exsculion of
business plan, preparation of budgel, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, mergar and acquisiion, and expansion of any fasilty.

Tha Gampany's board reviews the results of sach sagment on a quarkerly basis. The company's board of directons uses Profit after tax (PAT) Io assess the perlormance of the operafing
segments. Accordingly, thare is nnly one reportabla segmant far e Company which is *Sale of Praduct” , hance, ne specific disclosures have been made,

Entity wide disclosures
B. Information about reportable segments
The Company deals in ong business segmeant namedy "Manufactuning of LED Lighting” therefare, product wise reverus disclosures are not applicabla o the Company

i} Information about geographical areas
Comgany operatas primariy undsr a single gangraphic iocaton Le. india and accardingly, thars are nd separate reportable peographical segmants.
C. Revenue from Major customer
In K10 Salutions Private Limited, Revenue genertacd from one cusiomer amaunling lo Bs. 25.54 Million (Msrch 31, 2023: As. Nil)

{This space has baen intentionally left blank) e




IKIO Solutions Private Limited

(CIN:U36995UP201BPTC 108228)

Notes to tha Financial Statements for the yoar ended March 31, 2024

Al amounts ara in Rupee million, unless otherwise sfated)

41 Related Party Disclosure
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Pary Disciosures, tha namas of the related pares whare coatral exisls andior with whom ransaclions have taken place duing
the year and description of relatisnships, as identified and cerfified by the management are:

a} List of related parties
{1} Azlated parties where cantrol exists:

Relationship Name of related party
Holding Company 1KIO Lighting Limited (Since Septembar 12, 2022}
Whaolly Owned Subsidiary Raovaluw LLC [Since Novermber 22, 2023)
Fellow Subsidiary Rowalux Liahting Pracate Limited (Sinca Aorl 0. 2023)
Fria Technologies {India) Private Limited
{From Saplember 12, 2022 i March 31, 2023) rafar nota 43
Step down Subsidiary Foyalux Exports Private Limiled {Since Seplember 12, 2(22)

Fovakux Liohting Pracate Limited (From Seotember 12, 2002 til March 31, 2023)

Enterprises in which key management personnel and their relatives are  Raina Metal Tech Private Limded

able to exercise significant influence* Royaluy Lighting Privats Limbed (Til September 11, 2022)
PRI Lighting Limited (T Seotamier 11, 2022
Rovalux Exports Private Limited {T#l September 11, 2022)
Fine Technologizs (indial Private Limited (Till Seotember 11, 2022)
Krishna Compuiech Intemmalional Private Limited
Safe Solutons

Koy Managerial Personnel Nr. Hardeep Singh
Mre. Eshwesn Kaur
Mr. Banjeet Singh
Mr, Amit Kumar Gupta [Chiel Financial Officer)
Mr. Sandeen Kurnar Agarwal (Company Secretary]

Relative of Key Managerial Parsonnel Mrs. Surmest Kaur

* Witn wham significant ransactions have baan taken place duning the cument andlar pravious year
b} Details of related party iransactions are as below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A}  Transaction during the year
Sale of product
Royahe Exports Private Limited 14 €
Royahix Lighting Privats Limited 117 -
Krishng Computech Intamational Private Limited 0.04
Director's remuneration (refer below note iif)
Wr, Hardeep Singh 0.0 -
Salary to Key Managerial Personnel {including reimbursements)
Mr. Amit Kurmar Gupta 0.03 =
Purchases of Property, plant and equipment
IKIO Lighing Limsted 146 -
Royalux Lighting Privata Limited 380 -
Rent
Reina MetalTech Private Limited 022 02
Sale Salutions 0.03 B
Employee benafils expanse
Royakux Exports Private Limited 0.12 -
Repayment of Lean/imprest
Mr. Hardeep Singh 14330 5245
Mrs. Ishween Kaur 0.90 -
Mr. Sanjeat Singh 200 .
IKID Lighing Limited 76.00 152.00
Receipt of Loan/imprast
Mr. Hardeeg Bingh 8750 185,13
IKID Lighting Liméted 20150 25850
Finance costs
IKID Lighéing Limded o7

Capital work-In-prograss
Bullding under construction:

IKIC Lighting Lirmitad 0.48 -
Reyakix Lighting Privaia Limiled 505 :
Purchase:

Reyalx Lighting Private Limited .21

[nferest on bomrawing:

IKID Lighing Lim:éed 287 1.56
Sale of product:

IKID Lighting Liméted ¥ ] -
Royahi Exports Private Limied 189 .
Royahex Lighting Private Limited 2887 -
Krishna Computech Intamational Privale Limited L5 -
Other Expenses-rent.

Sale Solutions 2487

Short-Term Employes Benafits (refer footnote no.ii)
Mr. Hardeep Smgh 036
Lir. Amdl Kumar Gupka 076

75.65




IKIO Solutions Private Limited
(CIN:U3E9I5UPZ01BPTC 108238)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in Rupee millicn, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

(B] Balance outstanding with or from related partios as:-

Borrowings

Ir. Hardeep Singh
Wirs. Ishween Kaur
W, Sarjeat Sngh
1KIO) Lighting Limitedt

Interest payable
[KIE) Ligding Limied

Other Receivable
Foyahm Expons Private Limiled

Advance from customers
IKIO Lighting Limited

Trade payables
Foyakix Lighting Private Limited

Trade receivables

Foyalux Exports Private Limited

Faoyahux Liohting Prvate Limitad

Krishng Computech Infemasional Private Limited

Other payable {salary Payabls)
Wir, Hardeen Singh
Wir. Amit Kurnas Gupta

Corporate Guarantes! Personal Guarantee
IKIO Lighting Limited

Wi, Hardeep Singh

Wirs. Ishween Kauwr

Mir. Sanjeat Singh

Faina Metatiech Privale Limited

Inko Technologias

Poyahi Exgorts Privale Limilad

Finz Technologies (India) Private Limited

Foyakix Lighting Private Limited

Equitable Mortgage Given to
IKIO Lighting Limited

Poyahic Lighting Private Limited

FRoyaki Expons Privale Limited

Fina Technalogies (India} Private Limited

taken from

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties
jj  Thetems and condilions of the transackons with key managamant parsurnal wers no more favoursble than thasa avaiisble, or which might reasonably be expected 1o ba

avalsble. on smiar ransactians 10 non-kisy management personnal ralated enfities an an arm's kength basis.
iiy Al outstanding balances with these releled pasties are priced on an amm's length basis and are & be seflied in cash, None of the balances are secured.

TE25
300
32200
2635
039
£

052

1.3
017
.20

0.04
18.90

1890
18.90
18.80

18,50
4783

38,83
15492

As at

March 31, 2023

13225
10,60

106.50

140

144 85
14485
14485
144,85
1850
16.90
18.90
18.50

150.00
147.08
163.59

3166

iy Provision for incrementa] gratuity Sabiity and leave encashiment for tha currend year in raspact of key management personngls hias nat been considared stove, since the provison
i5 hiased on & actunial basis for the Company as & whole,

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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(CIN:U36935UP2018PTC108238)

Notes to the Financial Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stafed)

42 Employee Benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined banefit plans in India.
1. Defined contribution plans:
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employes salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards providant fund, administered
and managed by the government of India. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The eontributions are charged to the statement
of profit and loss as they accrue.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Contribution to provident fund 0.05 -

2, Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Company operates a post-amployment defined benefit plan for Gratulty, This plan entitles an emplayee to receive half month's salary for sach year of completed
service at the time of retirement/exit. The gratutty lisbility is unfunded.

The present value of obligation is determined basad on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Methad, which recognise each period of service as giving rise ta
additional employee benefit entifement and measures each unit separately to bulld up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratulty were carred out as at March 31, 2024, The present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Mathod.

A. The following table set out the status of the defined benefit obligation:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Net defined benefit liability

Gratuity (unfunded) 0.45 =
Total employee benefit liabilities 0.45 -
MNen-current 0.44 -
Current 0.m =

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the dosing balances for net defined banefit (asset) liability and its components:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Defined benefit Fair value of e oshasson Defined benefit Fair value of Bhot taciind)
obligatian plan assets R obligation plan assets Spenpet
{asset) Hability {asset) liability
Balance al the beginning of the year - E - - - =
Included in profit or loss -
Current service cost 0.35 - 0.35 - - -
Acquisition / divestiture 0.10 - 0.10 = - -
0.45 - 0.45 - = -
Included in OCI
Remeasurements |oss (gain) B - = - - .
Actuarial loss (gain) arising - 4 2 5 " -
Balance at the end of the year 0.45 - 0.45 - - -
Year ended Year ended
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Service cost 0.35 -

C. Plan Assets
The Company have any plant assets.
a) Economie Assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the marke! yields available on government bonds at the

As at As at
Particul

D March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate 7.00% =
Expected rate of future salary increase 5.00% -

The discount rate has been assumed at Manch 31 2024: 7.08% (31 March, 2023: Nil) which is determined by reference to market yisld at the balance sheet date on
govemment securities. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senlority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the amployment market,

b} Demographic assumptions

i As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Retirement Age &0 Years -
Employee Tumover! Withdrawal Rate 6% -
Martality rates inclusive of provision for disability IALM (2012-14) Ultimate -




IKIO Solutions Private Limited

{CIN:U36995UP2018PTC108238)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stafed)

D. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporing date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, halding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligations by the amount shown below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (D.00) 0.00 - -

Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 0,00 (0.00) - -

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approdimation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown,

Sensitivities due to mortality is not material and hence impact of change not calculated,

Sensitivities as fo rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensiens in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and Iife expectancy are not applicable beinga
lump sum benefit on refirement

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time, As such company is exposed to various risks as follows;
i. Salary Increases- More than expected increase in the future salary levels may results in increase in the liabilities.

il. Discount Rate: In case of yield on the govamment bands drops in the future period then it may result in increase in liability.

iii, Withdrawals — if the actual withdrawal rate is turn out to be more or less than expected then it may result in increase in the liabilities,

iv. Mortality - if the actual mortality rate in the future tums out to be more or less than expected then it may result increase in the liabilities.

E. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

As at As at

bt March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year 0.00 -
Betwesn 1 - 2 years 0.00 -
Betwaen 2 - 5 years 0.06 -
Over 5 Years 0.38 -
Total 0.45 -

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)
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(Al amounts are in Rupee milkon, unless atherwse stated)

43 Fair value measurement and financial instruments
a} Financial Instruments - by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial fabillies, including thuir lovel in the fair value hisrarchy.

b)

i)

Financial risk management

As at March 31, 2024

Carrying Value Fair value measurement using
P FVTPL FVOCl | Amortised Cost|  Total Level 1 Loval 2 Levei 3
Financial assets
MNon-current
Other financial assels - - 2.26 226 - - -
Current
Trade receivables 1.89 1.69
Cash and cash equivalents - - .84 9.84 - - -
Bank balances other ihan cash and cash - - 11.36 11,36 - - -
equivalents
Oiher financial assets x - .03 383 - - -
Total 25.08 29,08
Financial liabilities
Mon-current
Borrowings - - 322.00 322.00 - - -
Lease liabifiies - - 130,51 130.51 - - -
Gurrent
Bormowings - - 88,95 BB.956 - - -
Lease liabilities. - . 15.85 15.85 - - -
Trade payablas - - 4,59 4,50 - - -
Other financial liabiities - - 46.71 48.71 - - -
Total 608.51 60851
Az at March 31, 2023
Carrying Value Fair value measurement using
Particulars
FVTPL FVOCt Amortised Cost Total Lewvel 1 Leval 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Currant
Cash and cash equivalents = & 474 4.74 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash - - 3.47 347 - - -
equivalents
Other financial assets 0.68 0.68
Total B.89 8,89
Financial liabilities
Mon-current
Leasa labiities - . 69.20 58,20 . - %
‘Current

5 = - 499,58 499,58 - C =
Other financial Babilities - . .71 2.7 - - -
Total 578.49 578.49

Lavel 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Leysl 2; The fair value of financial [nstruments that are not fraded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which masimise the use of abservabla market
data and rely as little as possible on enlity specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an Instrumeant are observable, the instrument i included in lavel 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inpuls is not based on cbservable market data, the insfrument is included in level 3. The fair value of financial assels and liabilities
included in Level 3 is determined In accordance with generally accepled pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable curment market
transactions and dealer quoles of similar instruments.

The Company's borrowings have baen cantracted at ficed rates of interest, Accardingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not dus) which
approximates fair value,

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, rade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assats and liabiliies, approximates the fair values, due to their shorl-
term nature. Fair value of non-curent financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for malurity after twelve months from the reporting date) and security deposits is
similar 1o the carmying value as there s no significant differences between camying value and fair valus,

The fair value for security depesits were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counerparty cradit risk,

Valuation processes
The Managemeant performs the valustions of financial assets and kabilities required for financial reporting purposes an a yearic basis, Induding level 3 fair values.

The Company has exposure 1o he following risks arfsing from financial instruments:
» Gredit risk

» Liquidity risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibiiity for the establishment and oversight of the Compamy's risk management framework, The Board of Direclors have
authorised senior management ta establish the procasses and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in line with the businesses of the
Company.

The Company's risk management policies are established (o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to sat appropriate risks limits and controls, ww risks and

adherence to imits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflact changes in markel conditions and the Company's activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
[All amounis are in Rupee miflion, unless otherwse siated)

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, ather price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of derivative and non-
derivative financial insiruments. Compliance with policies and exposure imits is reviewed on & continuous basis,

{1} Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

Particulars As at Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade Receivables 1.69 -

Cash and cash equivalents 0,64 474

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11.36 347

Qther Financial assets 3483 Dea

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company f & customer or counterparty to a financial insirument fails fo meet its contractual aobligatians, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers,

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customer and investments. The Company maintains a defined creit policy &nd monitors the exposures to these crodit
risks on an ongoing basis. Credil risk on cash and cash equivalents is imiled as the Company generally invests in deposits with scheduled commierclal banks with high credit ratings
assigned by domestic cradit rating agencies,

The maximum exposure to the credit risk al the reporting date is primarily from trade recelvables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenus sarmed from
customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it eparates. The Company manages fls Credi risk through credit approvals,
establishing credit imits and continuously moniloring credit worthiness of customers to which the Campany grants cradit terms in the nomal course of business,

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expecied credit lnss model 1o sssess the impairmeant loss or gain. The Company establishes an allowance for Impairmeant that
represents ils expected credit losses in respect of Irade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss:
aliowance,

(i) Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liablities that are selfled by defivering cash or anather financial
assel. The Company's approach fo managing liuidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its labiliies when they are fallen due, under both
narmal and stressed conditions, without incurming unacceptable ksses or risking damage o the Company's reputation.

The Company believes that its bquidity position, including total cash (including bank depasits under lien and excluding interest accrued but nat due) of as st March 31, 2024 Re. 21.20
Milns  March 31, 2023: Rs, 8.21 Million) and the anticipated fulure intemally generated funds from operations will enable it to meet ile future known obligations in the ordinary
course of business,

Prudent liquidity risk management Impéies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availabifty of funding through an adequate amaunt of credil faciities to mest
obligations when due, The Company's policy is o regularly monitar its liquidity requirements to ensure thal it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from group companies
1o meet its liquidity requirements in the: short and long term.

The Company's Bquidity management process as monitored by management, Includes the following:
- Day to day funding. managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasis of the Company’s liguidity position on the basis of expecied cash flows.

Exposure to fiquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial iabiities af the reporling date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and mcluedes interest acereed bul not dus

an borrowings.
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2024 Amount Less than one | Between one | More than five Total
Year year o five years
Years
Mon Current
Non current borrowings 322.00 - 322.00 - 322.00
Lease Babilities 130,51 - 61,34 69.17 130.51
Current =
Barrowings Bae5 BB.95 - - B8.95
Leasa Rabilities 15.85 15.85 - - 15,85
Trade payables 4.58 459 - - 4.59
Other financial iabilities 46,71 4671 - - 46.71
Total 608.61 156.10 383.34 69.17 608.61
Contractual cash Alows
Carrying Between one
As at March 31, 2023 a t I.ns;han ona yearto five More than five Total
war years
years
Mon Current
Leasa fiabilities 69.20 - 0.01 69,19 69.20
Currant
Bomrowings 499.58 499,58 - - 489.58
Other financial iabiities 8.71 8.71 - - 8.7
Tatal 578.48 509.29 0.01 69.19 678.4%
(This spaca has been infentionally feft blank)
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(AN amournts are in Rupee milion, unless otherwise siated)

b. Financial risk management (continuad)
iii. Market Risk

Market risk i the risk that the fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fuciuate biecause of changes in market prices. Marke! sk comprisas fhree types of risk: inerest rate
fisk, cumency sk and clher price nsk, the Company mainly has expasure to ons lype of market nisk namely: currency risk . The obisctive of market fisk management s to

and control market risk exposures within accaptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Currency risk

Currancy risk is the risk Ihat the fulure cash flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuiste becausa of changes in forsign sxchange rates, The Company is exposed t the efects of
fiuctuation in the prevailing forsign curency exchange Fates on it= financial position and cash flows 1o the extent of eamings and expenses in foreign currencies, Exposure arises
primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the funclional curmency and other currenties from the Company's operating, Imvesting and financing activities.

Exposure to currency sk

The company exposure 10 CUrrency riek is il as at March 31, 2024,

44 Capital Management

For the purpose of iha Company's capital management, capital includes issued equily shara capital and all other equity reserves atiributatde to the equity holders of the Company.

Managemenl assesses the Company's capital requivements fn order to mainiain an efficient ovarall financing structure. The Company manages the capital struciure and makes

adjusiments to it in the kght of changes in economic condifions and the risk characteristics of the underying assets.

Ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may retum capital 1o shareholders, raise new debl or 155U new shares.

The Campany maniters capifal on the basis of the debt to capaal ratia, which is caiculated as interest-bearing debts divided by totsl capital (squity atiributable to owners of the parent

pliss interest bearing dabis}
As at Asal

Particisars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Barrowings 410.95 458,58
Less - Cash and cash sguivalent (9.84) (4.74)
Adjusted net dabl (4) 401.11 494 84
Tolal squity {B) 844 67 (13.79)
Adjusted net debt io adjusied equity ratio (AIS] 0.47 {35.88)

46 Ratio Analysis Disclosure

Year ended March,

Year ended March,

R Farmuila 31,2023 31, 2022

Current Ralic” Curment Asssls

Curent Liabilities 0.23 0.02
Detl Equily Ratio™ Tolal Debt

Tolal Shareholders Ecuity 048 138.23)
Debt Service Covarage Ratio™ Earnings available for debl services

Debl services” (DL04) {0.00)
Raturn an Equily Ratio®* Net Profit after Taxes

Avarege Equity Sharsholders Funds {0.08) 312
Inventory Turnover Ratio™ Cost of Goods Sold

Avarage Imveniony 010 =
Trade Receivable Turmover Rata™ C-mdllsa:;u

Avers uni Fecaivables 41,54 4
Trade Payable Tumover Ralio Credlt Purchases

Avarage Account Payables 0.14 -
Mat Capital Turnover Rafio™* Sales

Awarage Working Capital (B.01) -
Met Profit Ratio*** el Profit

Sales {14.08) Cl
Return on Capital Empioyed (pre )™ EBIT*100

Capital Employad (0.02) {0.01)

# Finance Cost+Shor tarm debt{including current maturities of long term debtj+ Current Lease Liability

“oue fo regayment of short tarm borowing
** due fo Increase in equity share capital

*** The Company has started s commercial production frem March 20, 2024 hence rabos sre not meaninghul and comparable.

(This space has begn infentionally left bfank)




IKIO Solutions Private Limited

(CIN:U35895UP2018PTC108238)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year andad March 31, 2024
(AN amounts are in Rupee mifion, uniess otherwise staled)

45 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

Year ended Year ended
A Amounts recognised in Profit and Loss March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax expanse
Currant year - "
Adjustment for prar years - a
Deferred tax expense
Change in recognised femporary differences (0.5971 471
{0.97) 471
Total tax expense {0.57) 4.71
B Movement in deferred tax balances
As at As at
April 1, 2023 Recognised in PL Recognised In OCI March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assats
Proparty, plant and equipment and Right of use assets {15.76) (14.48) - (30.22)
Lease liabilities 17.42 15.43 - 32.85
Bomowings - = = -
1.66 0.67 - 2,63
As at As at
April 1, 2022 Recognized in PL Racognised in OCI March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Rignt of use assats {14.83) (0.83) - (15.76)
Laase |iabilities 17.41 o0 . 17.42
Bomowings 383 {3.B&) - {000
6.37 (4.71) 2 1.66
(This space has baen infentionally lelt blank)
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a7

Expanditure in foreign currency

Year ended Year ended
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Property, plant and equipmant and Capital work-in-progress 122 45 .

48 Details with respect to the Banami Properties:

49

51

53

Na proceadings have baen infliatad or panding agains! the enfity undar the Benami Transactions {probibitkon) Act, 1988 for the year endaed March 31, 2024,

Scheme of amalgamation of Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited with Royalux Lighting Private Limited

Pursuant o and in terms of the Schema of Amalgamation by and among Fine Technologies (india) Privaie Limited (Fellow Subsidiary Company) as Transfaror Company, Royalux Lighting Private Limited as Transiarea
Company {Fefiow Subsidiary Compary), under Sections 233 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other appicable provisions of the Act, read with e Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Fules, 2016
("Schama®), which was approved by the Regional Directer (NR) vide its order dated March 18, 2024 which came ino 2ffect from Apnl 01, 2023:

. As per the approved scheme, existing shareholders of Fine Technologies (india) Private Limited will receave 69 equity shares of Transleree Company for every 1 equity share held in Transteror Company as a
purchasa considerafion.

. The Transterse Company issued and allotted, an aggregate of 18538265 fully pakd-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, o the Company en April 20, 2024,
. Pursuant to the scheme, Royalux Lighting Private Limited is siill & Fallow Subsidiary of the Company,
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

M applicable cases where registration of charges or salisfaction is required with Ragistrar of Companies hava been done, No registrafion or salisiaction is pending for the year endad March 31, 2024 and year ended March
31, 2023,

Disclosure under Rule 11{e} and Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

. Date of fund further Details of ultimate Amount of
Date of fund received| Detail of funding party Fund received Detail of intermediary party I i bsneBiarias further invesied
Oct 20, 2023 lkia Lighting Limitad 79,83 | IKIQ Soluibons Private Limited Nov 22, 2023 Auyalux LG 0.08
Dec 20, 2023 liia Lighting Limdlzd 120,44 |IKIO Solutions Privals Limited Dec 22, 2023 Royalux LG 75.78

Undisclosed incoms
There & na such income which has nol been disciosed in the books of accounts. No such income is surrendered or disciesed as income during he yaar in M 1ax assessmants under Income Tax Act, 1961,

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currancy

Profit or loss on trensactions imvelving Crypho or Viruai Curancy Mo transacton during the year
Amound of currency held as at the reporting dale Mo wansaction during the year
Deposits or advances from fof tha pur ol rading or ing in Currency { virual curre Mo iransachon during the year
Wilful Defaulter:

Mo bank or financial institulion has declared the company as "Walul delaulter”,

Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No transaction has been made with the company strick off under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Ast, 1956 during the year endad March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

{This space has been intentionally left blank) lie)y
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56 Compliance with number of layers of companies:

Where the company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under dause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,
57 Loan or advances granted Lo the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

No [oan or advances in the nature of loans are granted lo the promoters, directors, key managerial persons and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either

severally or jointly with any other person that are:

a) repayable on demand or

b} without specifying any tarms or year of repayment

58 Figures less than Rs. 5000 are disclosed as 0.00.

59 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified as per the curent year’s presentation for the purpose of comparability.

As per our report of even date,

For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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